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ISENTRIC LIMITED
ABN 11 091 192 871
APPENDIX 4E
FINAL REPCRT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Details of the reporting period

Reporting period Previous corresponding period

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Results for announcement to the market

Current Previous
. ) corresponding | Change
Key Information pegod period o
$
2.1 | Revenues from ordinary activities 9,363,995 7,829,383 20%

2.2 | Loss from ordinary activities after

0,
tax attributable to member (658,468) (13,528,376) 95%

2.3 | The total comprehensive profit for

g
the period attributable to member (138,718) | (14,049,509) 9%

2.4 Dividends/Distributions
No dividends declared in current or prior year,
2.5 Record date for determining entittements to dividends
N/A.
2.6 Referto the Review of Operations in the Director’'s Report on Page 2.
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Refer attached Financial Statement on Page 11.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

-Refer attached Financial Statement on Page 12.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Refer attached Financial Statement on Page 14.
Details of dividends or distributions

N/A

Details of dividend reinvestment plan

N/A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Refer attached Financial Statement on Page 13.
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ISENTRIC LIMITED
ABN 11 091 192 871
APPENDIX 4E
FINAL REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Net tangible assets per share
2018
Net tangible assets per ordinary share $0.010
Control gained or lost over entities during the period
N/A
Investment in associates and joint ventures
N/A
Other significant information
Refer.fo Directot’s Report on Page 1.
Commentary on the results and explanatory information
Refer to the Direclor's Report on Page 1.
Audit

The Appendix 4E is based on the financial report which has been audited.

2017
$0.023
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iSentric Annual Report 2018
Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report together with the financial report of iSentric Limited and its
controlled entities {ASX:ICU) for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

Directors

The names of Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Lim Keong Yew Non-Executive Chairman
Kwong Yang Chong Non-Executive Director
Lee Chin Wee Executive Director

Terry Cuthbertson Non-Executive Director
Raymond Hor Executive Director

Tim Monger Non-Executive Director
Company Secretary

Gary Stewart

Principal Activities

The principal operations and activities of the Consolidated Entity were the provision of software-
based mobile telecommunications and technology business in the Asia-Pacific market.

Results for the Year

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the consolidated entity generated an after tax loss of $658,468
{2017: loss $13,528,376), had net cash inflows from operating activities of $550,410 (2017: inflow
$319,071) and had net assets of $9,178,585 (2017: net assets $8,323,295).

The year represented an improvement from year ended 30 June 2017, with Arte Mobile making a
significant and much improved contribution for the financial year ended 30 June 2018. Nevertheless,
not all operating businesses performed well, whilst the Group commenced a number of business
development opportunities, which are expected to contribute the Groups earnings in 2019. The
costs associated for the business development have been expensed during the year, which impacted
the after-tax result. The Group result was impacted by:

{a) A loss of $735,398 from our Malaysian operation: Enterprise mobility, digital media and digital
payment businesses were impacted with competitors aggressive pricing and clients taking a
conservative approach in terms of IT spending;

(b}  The Group has also invested in new business projects in Malaysia and Indonesia, which are yet
to contribute to earnings. Significant investment was made in Myanmar to expand our digital
media technologies whilst exploring an expansion of our social gaming business; and

(c})  Arte Mobile also recorded a reduction of deferred tax assets of $245,973 and a withholding
tax write off amounting to $311,209.




iSentric Annual Report 2018
Directors’ Report

Financial Performance

EBITDA 771,831

Underlying earnings adjustments
Costs associated with acquisition 101,628
Costs associated with new business ventures 358,221

S -

Depreciation & amortisation ' {928,924}

1. Non-underlying income/expense are considered to be outside of the normal activities of the
group and have been separately identified. The methodofogy of identifying these items is
consistently applied from year to year. Underlying profit is a non-IFRS measure used by
management of the company to assess the operating performance of the business, The non-IFRS
measures have not been subject to audit.

Dividends

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the current financial year. The directors are
recommending that no final dividend to be paid in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 {2017:

Snil).
Review of Operations

The consolidated loss for the 12 months ended 30 June 2018 was $658,468 compared to a loss of
$13,528,376 for the previous 12 months ended 30 June 2017. Some of the key features of the year
ended 30 June 2018 include:

(a} The completion of the acquisition of My Play Company Limited; and
{b} Arte Mobile Technology Pte. Ltd. launching new product GameArtis in Indonesia.

Financial Position

The net assets of the consolidated group have increased by $855,290 from 30 June 2017 to
$9,178,585 as at 30 June 2018.

As at 30 June 2018, the consolidated group has a working capital surplus, being current assets less
current liabilities, of $1,432,454 (2017: $2,678,524).

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated group for the year ended
30 June 2018.
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Likely Developments

Given the challenges the Group faced this financial year, the Company moved up the mobhile gaming
value chain by acquiring My Play Company Limited, one the leading mobile game development and
publishing companies in Myanmar. iSentric is roiling out My Play games and implementing plans to
develop new games for the Indonesian, Malaysian and Thailand markets feveraging iSentric’s
existing technologies and digital products. The goal is to create a strong social gaming brand in the
region which is less reliant on telecommunication providers, thus moving the Group up the value
chain and reducing risk.

The Company will also further invest in Myanmar to grow it's Mobile Value Added Service revenue in
addition to mobile game revenue,

Director Information

Mr Lim Keong Yew Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Appointed 8 September 2014

Lim Keong Yew is of Malaysian nationality and has a Bachelor Degree in Computer Science from
Queen Mary and Westfield College, University of London.

Lim Keong Yew is currently acting as the managing director and chief executive officer of Donaco.
Lim Keong Yew is also a director of Malahon Securities Limited, a stock brokerage, founded in 1984
and is a member and participant of Hong Kong Exchange. Lim Keong Yew is also the principal of the
Slingshot Group of Companies, investment companies based in Hong Kong.

Lim Keong Yew’s relevant experience includes:

{a) Working as an executive director to M3 Technologies {Asia) Bhd where he was responsible
for strategic investments and corporate affairs;

{(b) Working at VXI Capital, China, a company whose business was focused on investing in and
restructuring companies in Malaysia, Beijing, Shanghai and Hong Kong; and

(c) Working as “Project Manager” for Glaxo Wellcome, London, United Kingdom,

Lim Keong Yew has experience in mobile technology and the management of businesses across a
number of countries. He will assist the company in managing growth and general management and
governance. :

Mr Terry Cuthbertson Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed 26 July 2010

Terry is currently Chairman of Australian Whisky Holdings Limited, Austpac Resources N.L., MNF
Group Limited, South American Iron & Steel Corporation Limited, Mint Payments Limited and
Malachite Resources Limited. He was formerly a partner of KPMG Corporate Finance and New South
Wales Partner in charge of Mergers and Acquisitions where he coordinated government
privatization, mergers, acquisitions and divesture activities and public offerings on the ASX for the
New South Wales practice.
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Mr Kwong Yang Chong Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed 8 September 2014

Kwong Yang Chong is of Australian nationality. Kwong Yang Chong is the Chief Financial Officer of
Donaco International Limited. He has substantial experience in finance and accounting and is a CPA
Australia member. Kwong Yang Chong's relevant experience includes:

{a) Audit manager at Ernst & Young for ten years;

(b) Financial controller of a leading commercial advertisement production Group in Malaysia for
10 years; and

{c) Chief Financial Officer of Donaco international Ltd (an ASX listed company).

Kwong Yang Chong compliance and financial experience will be utilised to monitor performance and
management reporting.

Mr Lee Chin Wee Executive Director
Appointed 8 September 2014

Lee Chin Wee is a founding shareholder and a director of iSentric.

Lee Chin Wee holds a First Class BEng {Hon) degree in Electrical & Electronic Engineering from
University College London, United Kingdom and a Master of Business Administration {MBA) from
University of Malaya. Prior to iSentric, Lee Chin Wee worked at Accenture as a Business Consultant
focusing on telecommunications billing systems, product development and revenue assurance. Lee
Chin Wee has experience in marketing and business development and actively targets growth with
existing customers and to establish new partners and customers.

Mr Raymond Hor Executive Director
Appointed 23 June 2015

Raymond Hor is an experienced executive with over 17 years experience in the TMT sector across
Asia. He has extensive knowledge in technology related business, with experience in systems
engineering, R&D and sales and marketing.

After listing two of his own companies as an entrepreneur, Raymond joined Questmark Capital
Management Sdn Bhd last year as an Entrepreneur-in-Residence. He was an Executive Director for
Redhot Media International Ltd, from 2007 to 2010. He managed the company’s business
development, M&A and IPC exercise for the AIM listing on the London Stock Exchange. He was also
previously the Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of Mexter Technology Berhad, listed
on the Malaysia ACE market, and was in charge of the sales and operations, R&D, as well as
corporate development of the company. Currently, he also serves as an advisor to a China-base
Education Group for its IPO exercise.

ivir Tim Monger Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed 25 September 2015

Tim Monger is a ‘qualified chartered accountant and holds a BComm from the University of New
South Wales. He is also an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and a Senior
Feflow at FINSIA.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Options

Directors Existing Shares
Direct Interest

Lim Keong Yew 6,678,986
Lee Chin Wee 4,692,844
Terry Cuthbertson 189,795
Raymond Hor 833,334
Tim Monger 1,000,000
Indirect Interest

Lim Keong Yew® 21,808,380

* By virtue of his shareholdings in Jox Holdings.

Meetings of Directors

The number of director’'s meetings attended by each of the directors of the Company during the
financial year were:

Director Directors’ Meetings Audit & Remuneration
Number Number eligible Number Number eligible
Attended to attend Attended - to attend
Lim Keong Yew 2 12 1 2
Terry Cuthbertson 7 12 ' 2 2
Lee Chin Wee : 12 12 - -
Kwong Yang Chong 12 12 3 3
Tim Monger 10 12 1 1
Raymond Hor 11 12 - -

Remuneration Report

Remuneration levels for Directors and executives are determined as part of an annual performance
review, having regard to market factors, a performance evaluation process and independent
remuneration advice. Remuneration packages comprise only a fixed salary component. The
remuneration structures in place are designed to attract suitably qualified candidates, reward the
achievement of strategic objectives, and achieve the broader outcome of creation of value for
shareholders. The remuneration structures take into account the following:

{a) The capability and experience of the Directors and executives; and
{b) The Directors and executive’s ability to control the financial performance of the Company’s
operations.

Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration consists of base remuneration {which is calculated on a total cost basis and
includes any FBT payable related to employee benefits), as well as employer contributions to
superannuation funds. In addition, external consultants provide analysis, and when requested,
advice to ensure the Directors’ and senior executives’ remuneration is competitive in the market
place.
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Service agreements

Executives have service agreements that are capable of termination within three months. In the
event of termination or resignation, employees are entitled to their statutory entitlements to annual
leave and long service leave, if applicable, There are no service agreements with any of the
Directors.

Non-executive Directors

Total aggregate remuneration for all non-executive Directors approved by shareholders at an annual
general meeting totalied $500,000 (plus statutory superannuation). Director fees paid or payable to
non-executive Directors total $150,000. Fees for nan-executive directors are not linked to the
performance of the consclidated group. Currently, the remuneration for a non-executive director is
$30,000 per annum,

Directors’ fees cover all main Board activities. Directors who perform additional duties (e.g.
extended business related travel overseas, special projects relating to preparation of half year and
annual reports) over and above that of normal Director's duties are remunerated cn commercial
terms and conditions. Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration for
each Director of the Consolidated Entity and each of the most highly remunerated officers are as
follows:

Details of remuneration

Total remuneration paid or payable to the Key Management Personnel for the year ended 30 June
2018 is set out below: '

Short term employee benefits

Key Management Director’s Remuneration Total
Fees

$ $ $
Lim Keong Yew 30,000 - 30,000
Lee Chin Wee - 124,505 124,905
Terry Cuthbertson 30,000 - 30,000
Kwong Yang Chong 30,000 ' - 30,000
Raymond Hor 32,982 21,221 54,203
Tim Monger 30,000 - 30,000
Tham Jee Yeung , - 271,708 271,708
Total 152,982 417,834 570,816
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Total remuneration paid or payable to the Key Management Personnel for the year ended 30 june
2017 is set out below:

Short term employee benefits

Key Management Director’s Remuneration Total
Fees

S S S
Lim Keong Yew 30,000 - 30,000
Lee Chin Wee - 151,596 151,596
Terry Cuthbertson 30,000 - ' 30,000
‘Kwaong Yang Chong 30,000 - 30,000
Raymond Hor 30,000 - 30,000
Tim Monger 30,000 ‘ - 30,000
Tham Jee Yeung - 418,968 418,968
Total 150,000 570,564 720,564

Options issued as part of remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2018

No option has been granted as part of remuneration to any Director or other key management
persennel of the group. {2017:Nif)

This is the end of the Remuneration Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of Mr Lim Keong Yew, Mr Terry Cuthbertson and Mr. Kwong Yang
Chong, who are all in charge of fulfiling the functions of the Audit Committee. This involves
maintaining a Code of Corporate Conduct for the consolidated group, and to ensure additional
assurance with respect to the quality and reliability of the information provided is prepared or
approved by third party providers. The board is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditor. The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal
control environment covering: '

(a) effectiveness and efficiency of operations
{b) reliability of financial reporting
{c) compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

In fulfilling its responsibilities the Board receives monthly management accounts which are tabled at
monthly board meetings.

Shares Issued
On 30 November 2017, the Company has issued 14,025,246 fully paid ordinary shares, which

amounted to AUD1million as the share based component for the acquisition of My Play Company
Limited.

Environmental Issues

The consolidated group’s cperations are not subject to significant environmental regulation under a
law of the Commonwealth or of a state or territory of Australia.
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Directors’ and Executive Officers’ Indemnification

The Consolidated Entity has not, during the financial year, in respect of any person who is or has
been an officer or auditor of the Consolidated Entity or a related body corporate, indemnified or
made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability incurred as an officer, including
costs and expenses in suc'ce'ssfuliy defending legal proceedings.

During the financial year, the Consolidated Entity paid insurance premiums of $11,755 {excluding of
GST) to insure the Directors and officers of the consolidated entity for costs and expenses which may
be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and
officers in their capacity as Directors and officers of entities in the group.

There is no indemnification in relation to the auditors.
MNon-audit Services

During the year, MNSA Pty Ltd, the Company’s Auditor, has performed certain other services in
addition to their statutory duties.

The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the Auditor and is
satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services during the year by the Auditor is compatible
with, and did not compromise, the Auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 for the following reasons:

(a) all non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the
Company and have been reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee to ensure they do not
impact the integrity and objectivity of the Auditor;

(b) the non-audit services do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence;

{c) as set out in APES110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, as they did not involve
reviewing or auditing the Auditor’s own work, acting in management or decision making capacity
for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

The following amounts were paid or are payable by the Consolidated Entity for non-audit services
provided during the year:

2018 2017
$ $
Non audit services
~ Tax compliance services 1,100 1,050

Options

No options were issued during the year. 3,000,000 options which issued pursuant to the conversion
of convertible notes on 23 September 2014 lapsed on 23 September 2017. 33,926,092 options which
issued on 31 January 2017 with the rights issue also expired on 31 January 2018.
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Proceedings on Behalf of Company

No person has applied to the court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring
proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is
a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or part of those
proceedings.

Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year
There were no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year
which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the consofidated group, the

results of those operations, or the state of the affairs of the consolidated group, in subsequent
financial years.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The auditot’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been received and can
be found on page 10 of this Annual Report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors.

Timothy Monger
Non-Executive Di

Sydney
30" August 2018
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AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER S 307C OF THE
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TO THE DIRECTORS OF ISENTRIC LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2018 there have
been no contraventions of:

i. the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

ii. any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

ME R Q\vi \»\&
MNSA Pty Ltd

s

Mark Schiliro
Sydney
Dated this 30t day of August 2018

................................................................................................................................................. 10
MNSA Pty Ltd Level 1, 283 George St Tel (02) 9299 0901 ;‘é’g"“&’?&gmmf
ABN 59 133 605 400 Sydney NSW 2000 Fax (02) 9299 8104 approved underthe

GPO Box 2943 Sydney 2001 Email admin@mnsa.com.au e s



Revenue

Sales direct costs

Amortisation and depreciation
Compliance and professional fees
Employee benefits expenses
Administration expenses
Marketing expenses

Travel expenses

Insurance expenses

Finance costs

Impairment charge on goodwill
Other expenses

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense} [ credit

Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Iterns that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met:

Exchange difference on translating foreign operations,
net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
members of the parent entity

Earnings per share
- Basic
- Diluted

Note

iSentric Annual Report 2018
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Consolidated Group

2018 2017
$ $
9,363,995 7,829,383
(4,070,982) (4,228,739)
(928,924) {525,304)
(921,218) (389,867)
(2,333,599) (1,753,296)
(431,861) (441,541)
(110,441) (221,016)
{203,558) (157,229)
(16,857) (11,118}

- {13,000,000)

(503,648) (59,196)
(157,093) (12,957,923}
{501,375) (570,453)
(658,468) (13,528,376)
519,750 (521,133)
(138,718) (14,049,509)

Cents per share

{0.37)
{0.33)

Cents per share

(9.03)
(8.11)

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred Tax Asset

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liability

Deferred Tax Liahility
Total Non-Current Liability
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Equity
Issued capital

Foreign currency translation reserve/(losses)

Retained losses
Total Equity

Note

10
11

12

13
22

iSentric Annual Report 2018
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

5 S
1,144,340 1,726,678
2,690,576 2,367,033
3,834,916 4,093,711
789,648 848,714
7,342,337 4,486,911
71,446 309,146
8,203,431 5,644,771
12,038,347 9,738,482
2,402,462 1,415,187
2,402,462 1,415,187
457,300 -
457,300 -
2,859,762 1,415,187
9,178,585 8,323,295
20,966,750 19,972,742
124,451 (395,299)
(11,912,616) (11,254,148)
9,178,585 8,323,295

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanyfng

notes.
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Cansolidated Group

Balance at 30 June 2016
Foreign currency transiation
Shares issued

Cost related to share issues
Loss for the year

Balance at 30 June 2017
Foreign currency translation
Shares issued

Cost related to share issues
Loss for the year

Balance at 30 June 2018

iSentric Annual Report 2018
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June

2018
Foreign
Currency
Translation Retained
Issued Reserve/ Earnings/
Capital {Losses) {Losses) Total
$ 5 $ $
18,001,394 125,834 2,274,228 20,401,456
- (521,133) - (521,133)
2,035,565 - - 2,035,565
(64,217) - - {64,217)
- - (13,528,376) {13,528,376)
19,972,742 (395,299} {11,254,148) 8,323,295
- 519,750 - 519,750
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
(5,992) - . {5,992)
- - {658,468) {658,468)
20,966,750 124,451 (11,912,616} 9,178,585

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equily should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and emplayees
Finance costs paid

Interest received

income tax refund/{paid)

Net cash inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Payment for subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Net cash outflow from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{Capital raising cost)/Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash held

Cash at the beginning of the financial pericd
Effect of exchange rate changes

NET CASH AT THE END OF THE YEAR

iSentric Annual Report 2018
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2018

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

Note 5 s
9,102,503 8,519,012

(8,607,554) (8,333,876}

(18,173) -

19,388 8,092

54,246 125,843

17 550,410 319,071
(81,619} (669,834)

(251,607} (509,688)

9 {939,835} -
(1,273,061) (1,179,522)

{G,808) 1,972,165

- 647,010

- (647,010)

{6,808) 1,972,165

{729,459) 1,111,714

1,726,678 . 691,051

147,121 (76,087)

7 1,144,340 1,726,678

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

iSentric Limited is a company tncorporated and domiciled in Australia and is a listed public company whose
shares are publicly traded on the Australian Securities Exchange (“"ASX”).

iSentric Limited is the legal parent of iSentric Sdn Bhd. The consolidated financial statements are issued under
the name of iSentric Limited but are deemed to be a continuation of the legal subsidiary iSentric Sdn Bhd {refer
Note 1{a)}. The consolidated financial statements are for the Consolidated Entity consisting of iSentric Limited
and its subsidiaries and iSentric Sdn Bhd and its subsidiartes, combined, as defined on page 43.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial report is a general purpose financial report prepared in accordance with Austraiian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations
Act 2001. The consolidated financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report covers iSentric Limited and its controlled entities as a consolidated entity {“Group”).
iSentric Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

_The financial report was approved hy the Directors on 30 August 2018.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the consolidated group in the
preparation of the financial report. The acceunting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise
stated. '

Except for cash flow information, the financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-
current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

Significant Accounting Policies

{a} Principles of Consolidation

In 2014 iSentric Limited acquired all of the issued shares of iSentric Sdn Bhd, resulting in iSentric Sdn Bhd
becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of iSentric Limited. The acguisition resulted in the original
shareholders of iSentric Sdn Bhd holding a majority share in iSentric Limited. Pursuant to Australian
Accounting Standards this transaction represented a reverse acquisition with the result that iSentric Sdn
Bhd was identified as the acquirer, for accounting purposes, of iSentric Limited {the “acquiree” and “legal
parent”).

The consolidated financial report includes the financial statements of iSentric Limited (“Legal Parent
Entity”} and its consolidated entities. iSentric Limited and its consolidated entities are together referred
te in the financial report as the “Conselidated Entity” or “The Group”.

A controlled entity is any entity the Legal Parent Entity has the power to control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. A list of controlled entities is contained in
Note 9 to the financial statements. All controlled entities have a June financial year-end.

The effects of all transactions between entities in the Group have been eliminated in full and the

consolidated financial report has been prepared using uniform accounting policies for iike transactions
and other events in similar circumstances.

15
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Business Combination
Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains control over one or more businesses.

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a combination
involving entities or businesses under commoen control. The business combination will be accounted for
from the date that control is obtained, whereby the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities {including contingent liabilities) assumed is recagnised {subject to certain limited exemptions).

When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement is also included. Subsequent to initial recognition,
contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is remeasured in
each reporting period to fair value, recognising any change to fair value in profit or loss, unless the
change in value can be identified as existing at acquisition date.

All transaction costs incurred in relation to business combinations, other than those associated with the
issue of a financial instrument, are recognised as expenses in profit or loss when incurred.

The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase.

Goodwill

Goodwil is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of
the sum of:

)] the consideration transferred:

{ii) any non-controlling interest (determined under either the full goodwill or proportionate Interest
method}; and :

(it} - the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest;

over the acquisition date fair value of any identifiable assets acquired and liahilities assumed.

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the
acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment in
the separate financial statements.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-cantrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their refative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the noncontrelling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i} the previous carrying amount of the assets ({including goodwill}, and
labilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (ie reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable Accounting Standards). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under AASB 139: Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Group holds less than
100% interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the non-controlling interest. The Group
can elect in most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value (full goodwill method) or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets {proportionate interest method). In such circumstances, the Group determines
which method to adopt for each acquisition and this is stated in the respective note to the financial
statements disclosing the business combination.

Under the full goodwill methed, the fair value of the non-controlling interest is determined using
valuation techniques which make the maximum use of market information where available

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of
associates is included in investments in associates.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated te the Group’s cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored and not
larger than an operating segment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill related to the entity disposed of.

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions and do not affect the carrying amounts of goodwill.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the company commits

itself to purchase or sale of asset {i.e. trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the
instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or toss”, in which case transaction costs are expensed
to profit or loss immediately.

The Group does not designate any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as being subject

* to the requirements of Accounting Standards specifically applicable to financial instruments.

{f} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at "fair value through profit or loss® when they are contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination to which AASB 3:
Business Combinations applies, held for trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking,
derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an
accounting mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is
managed by key management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
changes in carrying amount included in profit or toss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned from the financial asset and is included in the face of the
statement of profit and less and other comprehensive income.

(ii) Loans and receivables
L.oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation process and when the financial asset
is derecognised.
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(i} Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities and fixed
or determinable payments, and it is the Group’s intention to hold these investments to maturity.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
through the amortisation process and when the financial asset is derecognised.

{iv) Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets that are either not capable of
being classified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature or they are designated as
such by management. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is
neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.

They are subsequently measured at fair value with any remeasurements other than impairment
losses and foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pertaining to that asset previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets when they are not expected to
be sold within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. All other available-for-sale financial
assets are classified as current assets.

(v) Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial guarantees are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation process and
when the financial liability is derecognised.

Contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3: Business
Combinations applies is classified as a financial liability and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Fair value estimations

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and disclosure
purposes. The nominal value less estimated credit adjustment of trade receivables and payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated hy discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rates that is
available for simifar financial instruments.

Impairment

A financiat asset (or a group of financial assets) is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
avidence of impairment as a result of one or more events (a “loss event”) having occurred, which has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the market value of
the instrument is considered to constitute a loss event. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Also, any cumulative decline in fair value previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or Joss at this point.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost {including loans and receivables), a separate allowance
account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After having
taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying amount cannot he
recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or
the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was
previously recognised in the allowance account.
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When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have heen
renegotiated, the Group recognises the impairment for such financial assets hy taking into account the
original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events that have occurred are
duly considered.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Consolidated Entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate cost of assets, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Class Rate
Office & Computer equipment 5-33%
Renovation 20%
Motor vehicles 12.5-25%
Building 5%

Freehold land ' -

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in prefit or loss.

Intangibles
Intellectual Property

Intellectual property is recognised at cost of acquisition and is amortised over the period in which Its
benefits are expected to be realised. The balances are reviewed annually for impairment and any balance
representing future benefits for which the realisation is considered to be no longer probable are
recoghised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as impairment losses,

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. In relation to the amortisation of
intangibles with finite useful lives, management judgements are used to determine the estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Number of years
Mobile content and services : i0
Software platform 5

Goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires estimation
of the recoverahle amount of the cash generating units to which goodwill have been allocated. The
assumption used in this estimation of recoverable amount and the amount of goodwill are discussed in
Note 11. '
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Development Expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

Development expenditure is recognised as an expense except that costs incurred on development
projects are capitalised as nan-current assets to the extent that such expenditure is expected to generate
future economic benefits. Development expenditure is capitalised if, and only if an entity can
demonstrate all of the following:-

(a) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the asset under development;

(b} the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;

{c} its future economic benefits are probable;

{d}) its intention to complete and the ability to use or sell the developed asset; and

{e) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other rescurces to complete the asset under
development.

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses, if any. Development expenditure initially recognised as an expense is not recognised as assets in
the subsequent period.

The development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line method over a period of 3 years when the
products are ready for sale or use. In the event that the expected future economic benefits are no longer
probable of being recovered, the development expenditure is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying values of assets, other than those to which AASB136 - Impairment of Assets does not apply,
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when there is an indication that the
assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with
their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the assets is the higher of the assets’ fair value
less costs to sell and their value-in-use, which is measured by reference to discounted future cash flow.

An impairment loss 1s recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried at its revalued
amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of a
previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset, :

[n respect of assets ather than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverahle amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a
reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the
asset that would have been determined {nhet of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Income Tax

The income tax expense/{income) for the year comprises current income tax expense/{income} and
deferred tax expense/{income).

Current income tax expense charged to profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income. Current tax
liahilities/(assets) are measured at the amounts expected to be pald tof{recovered from) the relevant
taxation authority using tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances
during the year as well as unused tax losses.
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Current and deferred income tax expense/(income) is charged or credited outside profit or loss when the
tax relates to items that are recognised outside profit or loss or arising from the business combination.

Except for business combinations, no deferred income tax is recognised from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled and their measurement also reflects the manner in
which management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liahility.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the
deferred tax asset can be utilised.

Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and
joint ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference can be controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will occur in the
foreseeable future,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is
intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and
liability will occur. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where: (a) a legally enforceable right of
set-off exists; and (b} the deferred tax assets and liahilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where it is intended that
net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur
in future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be
recovered or settled.

Cash & Cash'Equiva!ents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits available on demand with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Revenue and other income

(i) Sale of Goods
Revenue Is recognised upon delivery of goods and customers' acceptance and where applicable, net
of sales tax, returns and trade discounts.

(i} Services
Revenue is recognised upon the rendering of services and when the outcome of the transaction can
be estimated reliably. In the event the outcome of the transaction could not be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised to the extent of the expenses incurred that are recoverable.

{iii) - Revenue from Support Maintenance Services
Revenue from support maintenance services is recognised on the provision of software licensing

maintenance and product enhancement services.

(iv} Licensing Software
Revenue is recognised when the right to use the software is granted to the buyers.

{v) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on the effective yield on the investment.
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(h) Goods and Services Tax (GST} or Value Added Tax (VAT)

(i)

Revenues, expenses and assets {other than receivables) are recognised net of the amount of GST in
Malaysia and Singapore or net of the amount of VAT in Indonesia, except where the amount of GST or
VAT incurred is not recoverable from the Tax Offices of the respective jurisdictions. In these
circumstances the GST or VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an
item of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST or VAT included. The net amount of GST or
VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the Tax Offices of the respective jurisdictions is included as a
current asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST or VAT components of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the
Tax Offices of the respective jurisdictions are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from
customers or payments to suppliers.

Functiona! and Foreign Currencies

{i) Functional and Presentation Currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional currency, The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian doflar, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

{(ii) Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies on initial
recognition, using the exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are transtated at the rates ruling as of that
date, Non-monetary assets and Habllities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the
values were determined. All exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

{fii) Foreign Operations
Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Australian dolfars at the rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Income, expenses and other comprehensive
income of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
All exchange differences arising from translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity; attributed to the owners of the Company and non-controlling interests,
as appropriate.

Goodwil!l and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the
foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

On the disposal of a foreign operation {i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
subsidiary, or a partiaf disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that foreign operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss an disposal. The portion that related to non-
controlling interests is derecognised but is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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in addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate that includes a foreign operation while
retaining significant influence, the proportionate share of the accumulative exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of an intragroup loan is neither planned
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the exchange differences arising from translating such
monetary item are considered to form parl of a net investment in the foreign operation and are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Employee Benefits

The following liabilities arising in respect of employee entitlements are measured at their nominal
amounts. Wages and salaries and annual leave regardless of whether they are expecied to be settled
within twelve months of balance date and other employee benefits which are expected to be settled
within twelve months of balance date.

All other employee entitlements, including long service leave, are measured at the present value of
estimated future cash outflows in respect of services provided up to balance date. Uabilities are
determined after taking into consideration estimated future increases in wages and salaries and past
experience regarding staff departures. Related on costs are included.

Going Concern

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis. This presumes that funds will be
available to finance future operations and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur
in the normal course of business. :

Far the year ended 30 June 2018 the Group generated loss after tax of $658,468 {2017 Joss $13,528,376),
as at the balance date the Group's total assets exceeded total liabilities by $9,178,585 {2017: net assets
$8,323,295).

The Directors believe that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate due to the expected cash
flows to be generated by the Group over the next twelve months. The Directors will closely monitor cash
flows as the Group grows and if revenues do not increase as expected, the Directors will look to contain
costs. The Directors believe that these actions, if required, will be sufficient to ensure that the company
will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due for the next twelve months.

Notwithstanding the above, the directors acknowledge that there are a number of risk factors that could
materially affect the Group's future profitability and cash flows, which include, but are not limited to:

(i} Competition
There can be no assurance given in respect of the Group's ability to continue to compete profitably
in the competitive markets in which the Group operates. The potential exists for change in the
competitive environment in which the Group operates.

(ii) Reliance on key management
The responsibility of overseeing the day-to-day operations and strategic management of the Group
is substantially dependent upon its senior management and its key personnel. There can be no
assurance given that there will be no detrimental impact on the Group if one, or a number of, these
employees cease their employment.
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New and amended accounting policies adopted by the Group and New Accounting Standards for
application in future periods

Accounting Standards and interpretations issued by the AASB that are not yet mandaterily applicable to
the Group, together with an assessment of the potential impact of such pronouncements on the Group
when adopted in future periods, are discussed below:

AASB 9: Financial Instruments and associated Amending Standards {AASB 9)

AASB 9 is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
expects to adopt the new requirements from its mandatory reporting date, the financial year beginning 1
Tuly 2018. :

The Standard will be applicable retrospectively (subject to the provisions on hedge accounting outlined
below) and includes revised requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments,
revised recognition and derecognition requirements for financial instruments and simplified
reqguirements for hedge accounting.

The Group does not expect a significant impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying classification
and measurement requirements of AASB 9. It expects to continue to measure derivatives at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

AASB 15; Revenue from Contracts with Customers (AASB 15)

This Standard will come into effect on 1 January 2018 and replace the current accounting requirements
applicable to revenue with a single, principles-based model. Apart from a limited number of exceptions,
including leases, the new revenue model in AASB 15 will apply to all contracts with custoimers as well as
non-monetary exchanges between entities in the same line of business to facilitate sales to customers
and potential customers.

‘The core principle of the Standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of

promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods or services. To achieve this objective, AASB 15 provides
the following five-step process: ‘

- identify the contract(s) with a customer;

- Identify the performance obligations in the contract(s);

- determine the transaction price;

- allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract(s); and
- recognise revenue when {or as) the performance obligations are satisfied.

This Standard will require retrospective restatement, as well as enhanced disclosures. Some contracts
may include more than one performance obligation from the provision of services and third party
software license. The Group accounts for the services and software licence as separate deliverables.
Consideration hetween these deliverables are allocated using relative stand-alone selling prices.

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 15 may have an impact on the Group’s
financial statements, it is not expected to generate material differences to the current or future years’
results, '

AASB 16: Leases (AASB 16).

This Standard will:
- replace AASB 117 Leases and some lease-related Interpretations;
- require all lease to be accounted for ‘on-balance sheet’ other than short-term and low value asset
leases; and
- require new and difference disclosures about leases.
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This Standard will require retrospective restatement, as well as new disclosures, The directors anticipate
the adoption of AASB 16 may have an impact on the Group's financial statements. The Group has
conducted an initial assessment of the potential impact on Hs consolidated financial statements but has
not yet completed its detailed assessment. The Group has operating lease commitments and will be
required to recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases of office spaces.

AASB 16 is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Group
expects to adopt the new requirements from its mandatory reporting date, the financial year beginning 1
July 2019,

Key Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the
Group's accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed helow:- .

(i} Depreciation of Property and Equipment

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related deprectation charges for the property
and equipment are based on commercial factors which could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions. The Group
anticipates that the residual values of its property and equipment will be insignificant. As a result,
residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable
amount. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the
ecohomic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges
could be revised.

{ii} Income Taxes
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be
different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding of
the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of
business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the peried in
which such determination is made.

(iii} Impairment of Non-financial Assets
When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-use
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a
suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows.

(iv) Amortisation of Development Costs
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic
useful lives and therefore, future amortisation charges could be revised.

{v) Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
Management specifically reviews its loan and receivables financial assets and analyses historical bad
debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes
in the customer payment terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the
allowance for impairment loss. Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and
timing of future cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. If the expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will
impact the carrying value of receivables.
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{vi) Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value measurement were
determined using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if
the Group uses different valuation methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets and
liabilities would affect profit and equity.

(vii} Impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exists. This
requires management to estimate the expected future cash flows of the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill is allocated and to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the present
value of those cash flows. The future cash flows are most sensitive to budgeted gross margins,
growth rates estimated and discount rate used. If the expectation is different from the estimation,
such difference will impact the carrying value of goodwill.

Note 2: Revenue Consolidated Group
2018 2017
$ $
Revenue 9,300,732 7,550,358
Interest received 19,430 8,440
Gain on foreign exchange translation . 19,038 254,940
Rental income 18,235 -
Other miscellanecus income 6,560 15,645
9,363,995 7,829,383

Note 3: Income Tax Expense

Prima facie tax expensef{income} on profit/{loss} before tax

calculated at 27.5% (2017: 30%) (43,201) (3,887,377)
Tax effects of:

Difference in overseas tax rates {177,982) (75,363}
Non-taxable income (1,280) -
Non-deductible expenses 452,614 4,122,020
Effect of partial fax exemption and tax relief {16,152) {1,456)
Changes in unrecognised temporary difference {313,084) {149,634)
Deferred tax asset not recognised during the financial year 371,646 91,331
Utilisation of deferred tax asset previously not recognised - {73,405)
Tax saving incentive (247,392) -
Movement of deferred tax liability ‘ (80,700} -
Movement of deferred tax asset 245,973 117,121
Under-provision of current tax in the previous financial year (276} (108,945)
Withelding tax credit written off 311,209 536,161
Income tax expense / (credit) 501,375 570,453

Where applicable, grants and tax concessions are accrued in the year in which they are receivable.

Potential deferred tax asset attributable to unused tax losses, amounting to $399,789 {2017; 91,331} have not
been brought to account because Directors do not believe it is appropriate o regard realisation of the deferred
tax as probable. These benefits will only be obtained if:

(a) the Company derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the

benefit from the deduction of the loss to be realised;
(b} the Company continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by law; and
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{c) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Company in realising the benefit from the deduction for

the loss.

Dividend imputation

The balance of the franking account of the Company at the end of the year was nil. No dividends were paid

during the year.

Note 4; Auditor's Remuneration

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent

entity, its related practices and non-related audit firms:

{(a) Audit Services
Auditor’s remuneration, auditing or reviewing
the financial reports:
- Group auditor
- Other auditors

{b) Non Audit Services
- Group auditor
- Tax compliance services
- Other auditor
- Others

Note 5: Dividends

No dividends were paid or proposed during the financial year.

Note 6: Earnings per Share
Overall Operations
Loss per share {cents per share)
- Basic
- Diluted

Loss used in the calculation of basic EPS ($)

Welghted average number of shares outstanding during the
year used in calculations of basic earnings per share

Dilutive effect of options outstanding

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year used in calculations of diluted earnings per share

Infermation on options outstanding at the balance sheet date can be found in Note 13.

Consolidated Group

2018 2017
$ 5
54,498 48,000
35,311 16,889
1,100 1,050
17,308 16,207
(0.37) (9.03)
(0.33) (8.11)
(658,468) (13,528,376)
177,814,391 149,738,881
20,581,325 17,035,178
198,395,716 166,774,059
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Note 7: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consalidated Group

2018 2017
$ $
Cash at bank : 1,115,457 1,411,244
Cash in hand 18,960 2,780
Fixed deposits 9,923 312,654
' 1,144,340 1,726,678
Reconciliation of cash
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows 1,144,340 1,726,678
Note 8: Trade and Other Receivablas
Trade receivables o 2,100,371 1,861,049
Other receivables 169,590 65,174
Amount owing by a related party 82 -
Prepayments 61,881 118,213
Deposits 28,019 40,426
Tax refundable 330,633 282,171
2,690,576 2,367,033

Note 9: Interest in Subsidiaries

Infarmation about Principal Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by
the Group. The proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. Each

subsidiary’s principal place of business is also its country of incorporation.

Country of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation Ownership Interest Held by the Group

2018 2017
iSentric Wireless Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100% 100%
Datamarph Services Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100% 100%
PT Isentric Technology Indonesia Indonesia 100% 100%
Arte Mobile Technology Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100% 100%
iSentric Australia Pty. Ltd Australia 100% 100%
MyBal Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100% 100%
My Play Company Limited Myanmar 100% -

Significant Restrictions

There are no significant restrictions over the Group's ability to access or use assets, and settle liabilities, of the

Group.
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Acquisition of Controlled Entity

On 30 September 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the issued capital of My Play Company Limited
{“MyPlay”), one of the leading mobile game developer and publisher in Myanmar. The initial tranche of the
purchase consideration was $2,000,000, being $1,000,000 in cash and $1,000,000 in iSentric shares issued at a
price of 7.13 cents.

The tranche 2 and 3 contingent consideration for MyPlay is $2,000,000 each which includes equal components
of cash and shares in iSentric, payable over two years being dependant on the future performance. Tranche 2
and 3 will be adjusted on a pro-rated basis should MyPlay not achieve the EBITDA targets. All shares issued in
tranche 2 and tranche 3 will be subject to a 12 months escrow from the date of issue.

The acquisition of MyPlay provides iSentric with access to Myanmar, which is a large and rapidly growing
market for mobile games and payments; and will allow iSentric to utilise MyPlay’s technology to expand into
social gaming markets in Asia. Initiatives have been put in place to market MyPlay’s gaming products in
Malaysia and Thailand.

Through acquiring 100% of the issued capital of MyPlay, the Group has obtained control of the Company.

Fair Value
Note ' $’000
Purchase consideration ,
- cash 1,000
- equity issued 1,000
- contingent consideration 12 673
2,673
Net cash acquired ' {92)
Working capital adjustment 32
: 2,613
Less: '
Equipment i 17
Working capital {15)
Intangible assets
- Software 1,854
- Customer Relationships’ 298
Deferred tax on identified intangible assets ‘ {538)
Goodwill a97
Net cash outfiow on acquisition 940

Revenue of MyPlay included in the consolidated revenue of the Group since the acquisition date on 1 October
17 amounted to $367,561. Profit after tax of MyPlay included in consolidated profit of the Group since the
acquisition date amounted to $69,638.

Included within compliance and professional fees in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are acquisition-related costs totalling $101,628. The costs include audit, advisory and legal fees.
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Note 10: Property and Equipment

Cost

Opening Balance

Additions/Written off

Effect of movement in exchange rate
Closing Balance

Accumulated depreciation

Opening Balance

Depreciation for the year

Effect of movement in exchange rate
Closing Balance

Total plant and equipment

iSentric Annual Report 2018
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

1,128,521 427,464
100,860 741,714
(12,405) (40,657)

1,216,976 1,128,521
279,807 185,976
146,340 115,420

1,181 {21,589)
427,328 279,807
789,648 848,714
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Goodwill impairment tests
Description of the cash generating units and other information

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to three cash generating units [CGUs) for
impairment testing.,

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwil! allocated to CGUs are as follows:

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

$ - $

Arte Mobite Technology 2,418,789 2,418,789
Datamorph 61,999 56,080
MyPlay 997,338 -
3,478,126 2,474,869

The annual impairment test undertaken at 30 June 2018 involved determining the recoverable amount of each
CGU based on their fair value less cost to sell and comparing it to the CGU’s carrying amount. Fair value reflects
the best estimate of the amount that an independent third party would pay to purchase the CGUs, less related
selling costs. Carrying value reflects goodwlll and the other identifiable assets and liabilities that can be

allocated to each CGU and that generate the CGU’s cash flows. '

The directors used management’s internal assessment as the basis for determining the fair value less costs to
sell. Fair value has been calculated using discounted future cash flows. The fair value measurement was
categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs in the valuation technique used. Discounted cash flows
include a terminal value calculated in accordance with the Gordon Growth model using a long term nominal
inflation rate of 5%.

The valuation is based on cash flow projections over a five year period using assumptions that represent
management’s best estimate of the range of business and economic conditions at this time. The valuations
have been reviewed and approved by the Board of iSentric.

Discount rates are calculated using a weighted average cost of capital method which is based on market data,
reflects the time value of money and includes a risk premium to account for current economic conditions.

The pre-tax discount rates applied to the undiscounted cash flows were 20.5%-22.5% for Arte Mobile
Technology and Datamorph. Management consider that, as all CGUs operate in the Digital Media Industry in
Malaysia and Indonesia and provide equivalent products and services in the same markets, the risk specific to
gach unit are comparable and therefore a discount rate of 21.5%-23.5% is applicable to Arte Mobile
Technology and Datamorph. While the pre-tax discount rates applied to the undiscounted cash flows for My
Play were 41.0%-48.0%.

Based on the results of the tests undertaken, there were no impairment recognised in relation to goodwill of all
CGUs in the 2018 financial year (2017: 513,000,000 }.
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Note 12: Trade and Other Payables

Note

Current
Trade payables
Other payahles

Contingent consideration 9

Amount owing to a director
Amount owing to a related party
Accruals

Tax payable

Note 13: Contributed Equity

183,655,041 {2017: 169,629,795) fully paid ordinary shares
{a)} Ordinary shares - value

At the beginning of the reporting period

Add: Share issued

Less: Cost related to share issues

Balance at end of reporting period

{b) Ordinary shares - number

At the beginning of the reporting period

Share issued

Balance at end of reporting period

Notes

iSentric Annual Report 2018
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

$ $
922,958 822,408
171,862 300,464
673,544 -
75,010 45,963
203,669 20,384
309,476 216,872
45,943 9,096
2,402,462 1,415,187

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

S $
20,966,750 19,972,742
19,972,742 18,001,394
1,000,000 2,035,565
{5,992) (64,217)
20,966,750 19,972,742
No. No.
169,629,795 135,703,703
14,025,246 1 33,926,092
183,655,041 169,629,795

{1) Shares issued for the acquisition of My Play Company Limited on 30 November 2017

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Consolidated Entity in
propertion to the number of shares held. At shareholders meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote
when a poll is called, otherwise each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands.

Options

No options were issued during the year. 3,000,000 options which issued pursuant to the conversion of
" convertible notes on 23 September 2014 lapsed on 23 September 2017. 33,926,092 aptions which issued on 31

January 2017 with the rights issue also expired on 31 January 2018.

The balance of options as at 30 June 2018 is nil.
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Note 14: Segment Reporting
ldentification of reportable segments

iSentric Limited has Identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used
by the board of directors (chief operating decision makers) in assessing performance and determining the
allocation of resources.

Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating segments

{a) Accounting policies adopted
Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors as the chief decision maker with
respect to operating segments are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to
those adopted in the annual financial statements of the Group.

(b) Inter segment transactions
Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments. The prices charged on inter-
segment transactions are the same as those charged for simitar goods to parties outside of the consolidated
group at an arm’s length. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation.

{c) Segment assets ,
Assets include all assets used by a segment and consist principally of cash, receivables, intangibles and
property, plant and equipment, net of allowances and accumulated depreciation and amortisation. While
most such assets can be directly attributed to individual segments, the carrying amount of certain assets
used jointly by two or more segments is allocated to the segments on a reasonable basis.

(d) Segment liabilities
Liabilities consist principally of accounts payable, employee entitlements, accrued expenses and provisions.

Consolidation Consolidated

Malaysia Singapore Australia Indonesia Myanmar Adjustment Group
$ $ $ 5 $ $ 5
2018 :
REVENUE :
External sales 4,743,029 3,108,793 - 1,261,723 367,561 (180,374} 9,300,732
Interest revenue 17,254 124 1,214 170 668 - 19,430
Other income 15,457 7,879 - 18,710 - 1,787 43,833
Total revenue 4,775,740 3,116,796 1,214 - 1,280,603 368,229 (178,587} 9,363,995
Expenses (5,510,557) (1,211,029) (1,126,938) (1,252,294) {275,378} (144,892}  (9,521,088)
Profit / (loss) before
income tax expense (734,817) 1,905,767 (1,125,724} 28,309 92,851 (323,479) (157,093}
Income tax expense {581) (557,182) - {1,099) (23,213} 80,700 {501,375}
Profit / {loss) after (735,398) 1,348,585 (1,125,724) 27,210 69,638 (242,779}  (658,468)
income tax expense
ASSETS
Total assets 3,170,047 7,234,831 18,720,095 866,115 279,715 (18,232,460} 12,038,347
LIABILITIES
Total liabilities 1,432,592 249,688 4,216,760 1,151,495 112,743 (4,303,516) 2,859,762
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2017

REVENUE
External sales
Interest revenue
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses

Profit / (loss) before
income tax expense

Income tax expense

Profit / {loss) after
income tax expense

ASSETS
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Total liabilities

iSentric Annual Report 2018
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Consolidation

Consolidated

Malaysia Singapore Australia Indonesia Adjustment Group
$ $ $ $ $ $
5,549,339 1,880,996 - 491,613 (371,590) 7,550,358
4,707 184 3,396 153 - 8,440
19,806 4,725 243,925 2,465 {336) 270,585
5,673,852 1,885,905 247,321 494,231 {371,926) 7,829,383
{5,688,111) (1,005,949) (13,293,221) {1,160,658) 360,633 (20,787,306)
{114,259} 879,956  (13,045,900) (666,427) (11,293) (12,957,923}
(26,438) {542,412) - {1,603) - (570,453)
{140,697) 337,544  (13,045,900) (668,030) {(11,293) (13,528,376}
3,512,251 5,548,415 29,756,342 825,082  {25,903,608) 9,738,482
1,241,033 215,158 2,121,287 1,148,853 (3,311,144} 1,415,187

Note 15: Financial Risk Management

The Group's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks ‘trade and other receivables, trade and
other payabiles, loans to and from related parties.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139: Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements,

are as follows:

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables
Other receivables

Amount owing by a related party

Deposits
Tax refundable
Total

Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables

Contingent consideration
Amount owing to a director

Amount owing to a related party

Accruals
Tax payable
Total

Consolidated Group

Note 2018 2017
$ $

1,144,340 1,726,678

2,100,371 1,861,049

169,590 65,174

82 -

28,018 40,426

330,633 282,171

3,773,035 3,975,498

922,958 822,408

171,862 300,464

12 673,544 -
75,010 45,963

203,665 20,384

309,476 216,872

45,943 9,096

2,402,462 1,415,187
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{a) General objectives, policies and processes

In common with all other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial
instruments. This note describes the Group’s ohjectives, policies and processes for managing those risks
and the methods used to measure them. Further guantitative information in respect of these risks is
presented throughout these financial statements. ’

There have been no substantive changes in the Group’s exposure to financial instrument risks, its ohjectives,
policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous
periods unless otherwise stated in this note.

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risk management objectives and
policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing
and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and polictes to the
Group’s finance function. The Group’s risk management policies and objectives are therefore designed to
minimise the potential impacts of these risks on the Group where such impacts may be material. The board
receives monthly financial reports through which it reviews the effectiveness of the processes put in place
and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets. The overall objective of the Board Is to set
policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Group’s competitiveneass and
flexibility.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the other party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge their obligation
resulting in the Group incurring a financial loss. This usually occurs when the debtors or counterparties to
derivative contracts fail to settie their obligations owing to the Group.

The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the application of credit approvals, credit imits and
monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis.

The group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect
of trade and other receivables as appropriate. The main components of this allowance are specific loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established
for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. Impairment is
estimated by management based on prior year experience and the current economic environment.

(i} Credit risk concentration profile

As at the end of the financial year, the Group has significant concentration of credit risk related to the
amount owing by six customers (2017 — five customers} which constituted approximately 75% {2017 —
589%) of total trade receivables.

(ii} Exposure to credit risk

At the end of the financial year, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position of the Group
after deducting any allowance for impairment {where applicable).
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{1il) Ageing analysis

The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date is as foows:

2018 2017

S 5

Not past due 1,530,748 1,503,822
Past due 0 — 30 days 261,182 269,487
Past due 31 — 60 days 39,731 9,003
Over 60 days 268,710 78,737
Total 2,100,371 1,861,049

At the end of the financfal year, trade receivables that are individually impaired were those with
significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. The receivables are not secured by any
collateral or credit enhancement.

The Group believes that no additional impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables
that are past due but not impaired because they are companies with good collection track record and no
recent history of default.

{¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulties raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments, e.g. borrowing repayments. The Board of Directors manage liquidity
risk by continually monitoring forecast cash flows and generating when required additional capital funding
as necessary. It is noted that the Group does not have any borrowing facilities.

The following maturity analysis is done on a contractual undiscounted cash flow basis:

Maturity Analysis - Consolidated Group

Financial liabilities Carrying Contractual Within 1
Amount Cash flows year
$ $ $
2018 _
Trade and other payables and accruals 1,653,908 1,653,908 1,653,908
Ameount payable to a director 75,010 75,010 75,010
2017
Trade and other payables and accruals 1,369,224 1,369,224 1,369,224
Amount payable to a director 45,963 45,963 45,963

The fair value of the current trade and other payables approximates their carrying values.

(d) Market rate risk

Market rate risk arises from the use of interest bearing and foreign currency financial instruments. It is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates {interest rate risk) or foreign exchange rates {currency risk). The Company and Group are not
subject to other price risk on its financial instruments.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group does not have any interest-bearing borrowings and hence is not exposed to interest rate risk.
Any surplus funds of the Group will be placed with licensed financial institutions to generate income,
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{ii} Currency risk
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The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are denominated in
foreign currencies for the financial year ended 30 June 2018. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollar (“USD"), Australian Dollar (“AUD"), Euro (“Euro”), Malaysian Ringgit
("MYR"), Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”} and Singapore Dollar (“SGD"}. Foreign currency risk is monitored
closely on an on-going basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable level,

Foreign currency exposure:

2018 uso EUR AUD SGD IDR MYR Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
Financial asset
Trade and other
receivables - 695 - 1,676 2,152,322 99,126 2,253,819
Cash and cash 28,002 493 9,976 201 - - 38,672
equivalents :
Financial liability
Trade and other payables - {362} (75,010}  {1,895,733) {90,904} (1,501,164} (3,563,173)
Net currency exposure 28,002 826  (65,034) (1,893,855) 2,061,418 (1,402,038} [1,270,682)
2017 sD EUR AUD SGD IDR MYR Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
Financial asset
Trade and other
receivables 334 - - 1,417 1,759,705 - 1,761,456
Cash and cash 97,887 11,007 10,029 191 - - 119,114
equivalents
Financial liability . o
Trade and other payables - (291} (45,963) - (90,511)  (97,935) {234,700}
Net currency exposure 98,221 10,716 (35,934} 1,608 1,669,194 {97,935} 1,645,870
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonahle possible change in the foreign
currencies at the end of the financial year, with all other variables held constant:

2018 2017
Increase/(Decrease) Increasef(Decrease)
AUD AUD

usD:

- strengthen by 10% 2,800 8,934
- weakened by 10% {2,800) (8,934)
EUR:

- strengthen by 10% : 83 1,091
- weakened by 10% {83) (1,091)
AUD:

- strengthen by 10% , {6,503) 4,599
- weakened by 10% 6,503 {4,599)
SGD:

- strengthen by 10% (189,386) 164
- weakened by 10% . 189,386 {164)
IDR:

- strengthen by 10% 206,142 175,896
- weakened by 10% (206,142) (175,896)
MYR:

- strengthen by 10% (140,204} 9,864
- weakened by 10% 140,204 (9,864)

{e) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(f)

At the end of the reporting period, there were no financial instruments carried at fair values in the
statements of financial position except as disclosed in Note 16.

The fair values of the financlal assets and liabilities of the Group which are maturing within the next 12
months approximated their carrying amounts due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial
instruments or repayable on demand terms.

Capital Management

The Board endeavours to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a
balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
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Note 16: Fair value measurements

The Group measures and recognises the following assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis after
initial recognition:

- obligation for contingent consideration arising from a business combination
The Group does not subsequently measure any liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

Fair Value Hierarchy

For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into one of the three possible levels
based on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as

follows:

Level 1
Measurements based on quoted
prices {unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2
Measurements based on inputs
other than guoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3
Measurements based on
unchservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or
more valuation technigues. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable
market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset or liability.is
included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the asset or
liability is included in Level 3,

Valuation techniques

The Group selects a valuation technigue that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the
specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Group
are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

- Market approoch uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for
identical or similar assets or liabilities

- Income approach converts estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single
discounted present value

- Cost approach reflects the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the
Group gives priority to those technigues that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data {such as publicly available information on
actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the
asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available and
therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions are considered
unobservable.

Level 3

Levei 1 Level 2 Total
$ $ $ $
2018
Recurring fair value measurements
Liabilities
Contingent consideration arising from
acquisition of My Play Company Limited - 673,544 - 673,544

40




iSentric Annual Report 2018
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Contingent consideration arising from acquisition of My Play Company Limited
On 30 September 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the issued capital of My Play Company Limited {“MyPlay”).
In acquiring MyPlay, the Group incurred a contingent consideration liability consisting of an obligation to make
an additional cash payment to a non-continuing employee vendor if the EBITDA of MyPlay for the flrst 12
months and second 12 months after completion achieve a pre-specified target level. The fair value of the

contingent consideration $673,544 in 2018 is determined based on the actual EBITDA of the first 9 months in
FY18 and management’s forecast EBITDA for the next 15 months.

Note 17: Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

(a} Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with profit/{loss) after income tax

Consolidated Group

2018 2017
$ 5
Loss after income tax (658,468) (13,528,376)
Non cash flows in profit/(loss) for the year:
Depreciation and amortisation 928,924 525,304
Impairment loss on goodwill - 13,000,000
Bad debts written off 108,137 16,078
Property and equipment written off 2,513 6,001
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts - {14,291)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange 292,725 {106,633)
Sub total 673,831 (101,827}
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables {431,680) 605,515
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 313,731 {192,200}
Effect of exchange rate changes (5,472) 7,583
Net cash inflow from operating activities ‘ 550,410 319,071

{b) Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities

Securities issued on acquisition

On 30 November 2017, 14,025,246 ordinary shares were issued as consideration for the acquisition of My
Play Company Limited.

Note 18; Key Management Personnel

{i) Details of Key Management Personnel

Name Title

Lim Keong Yew Non-Executive Chairman
Kwong Yang Chong Non-Executive Director

Lee Chin Wee Executive Director

Terry Cuthbertson Non-Executive Director
Raymond Hor Executive Director

Tim Monger Non-Executive Director
Tham lee Yeung Group Chief Executive Officer
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(ii} Compensation of Key Management Personnel

These remuneration disclosures are provided in the Directors’ Report under Remuneration Report and

designated as audited.

Short term employees benefit

(iii)Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel
Shares held directly and indirectly in the Company:

2018 Balance at the
start of the year

Direct Interest
Lim Keong Yew
Lee Chin Wee
Raymond Hor
Terry Cuthbertson
Tim Monger
Tham Jee Yeung

Indirect Interest
Lim Keong Yew™*

2017 Balance at'the
start of the year

_Direct Interest
Lim Keong Yew
Lee Chin Wee
Raymond Hor
Terry Cuthbertson
Tim Monger
Tham Jee Yeung

Indirect Interest
Lim Keong Yew*

6,678,986
4,692,844
833,334
189,795
1,000,000
2,066,667

21,808,380
* By virtue of his shareholdings in Jox Holdings.

6,678,986
4,692,844
1,790,309
189,795
600,000
400,000

21,808,380
* By virtue of his shareholdings in Jox Holdings.

remuneration

remuneration

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

$ $

570,816 720,564
Other changes Balance at the

during the year end of the period

- 6,678,986
- 4,652,844
- 833,334
- 189,795
- 1,000,000
- 2,066,667

21,808,380

Other changes Balance at the
during the year  end of the period

- 6,678,986

- 4,692,844
(956,975) 833,334
- 189,795

400,000 1,000,000
1,666,667 | 2,066,667

- 21,808,380

All equity transactions with key management personnel, which relate to the Company’s listed ordinary

shares, have been entered into on an arms length basis.

(iv)Option holdings of Key Management Personnel

Raymond Hor
Terry Cuthbertson
Tim Monger
Tham Jee Yeung

2018 2017

- 833,334
- 100,000
- 400,000
- 1,666,667
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The future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:-

Not more than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Note 20: iSentric Limited Parent Company Information

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

$ $
49,972 58,085
- 48,404
49,972 106,489

iSentric Sdn. Bhd. was acquired by iSentric Limited on 8 September 2014, As required by Australian Accounting
Standard AASB3: Business Combinations. iSentric Limited is deemed to have been acquired by iSentric Sdn. Bhd.
as at 8 September 2014 under reverse acquisition rules. Accordingly, iSentric Sdn. Bhd. is the Parent Entity for

accounting purposes, iSentric Limited is the legal parent.

The following infoermation has been extracted from the books and records of the legal parent, iSentric Limited
and has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. Accordingly the information
presented below does not relate to “the Parent Entity” as defined on page 15.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current Assets
Non-current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Accumulated losses
TOTAL EQUITY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Parent Entity Contingencies

The directors are of the opinion that no provisions are required in respect of the Company’s contingencies.

Guarantees

Parent Entity

2018 2017

$ 5

14,860 756,141
18,705,139 16,000,101
18,719,999 16,756,242
4,216,760 2,121,287
4,216,760 2,121,287
72,170,890 71,176,882
(57,667,651) (56,541,927)
14,503,239 14,634,955
(1,125,724) (13,045,900)
(1,125,724) (13,045,900)

The Company has not entered into any guarantees, in the current or previous financial year in relation to the

debts of its subsidiaries.
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Contractual Commitments

At 30 June 2018, the Company has not entered into any contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment {2017: Nil).

Note 21: Related Party Transactions

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

$ $

Sales received/receivable from related parties 733,720 188,365
Purchases paid/payable to a related party ‘ 1,783 -
Consultation fee charged by a related party . 58,641 -

The related parties are entities that have common directors.

Note 22: Foreign Currency Translation Reserves

The foreign currency translation reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of a foreign
controlled subsidiary.

Consolidated Group

2018 2017
$ $

Foreign currency translation reserve
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 124,451 (395,299)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve 519,750 (521,133}

Note 23: Subsequent Events
There is no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which

significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated group, the resulis of those
operations, or the state of the affairs of the consolidated group, In subsequent financial years,

Note 24: Company Details
The registered office of the Company is:
iSentric Limited

Level 10, 50 Pitt Street
Sydney NSW 2000
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Directors’ Declaration

The directors of the company declare that:

1. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 11 to 44, are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and:
a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards which as stated in accounting policy Note 1 to
the financial statements, constitutes compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ([FRS); and
b. give a true and fair view of the financial pasition as at 30 June 2018 and of the performance
for the year ended on that date of the company and consolidated group;
2. inthe directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay
its debts as and when they become due and payable.
3. the Directors have been given the declarations required by s295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiai Officer.

TW is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.
O Ao

Timothy Mongd
Non-Executive P
30" August 2018/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF iSENTRIC LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of iSentric Limited (the Company) and Controlled Entities
(the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration
of the Group comprising the Company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time
during the financial year.

In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

i.  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

(b) the financial report also complies with the International Financial Reporting Standards as

disclosed in Note 1.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have
also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given
to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this
auditor’s report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on |
these matters. .

Key Audit Matter

How Our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Decentralised Operations

The Group comprises subsidiaries (components)
whose operations are spread across Singapore,
Malaysia, Indonesia and Myanmar. The Group's
business is the provision of software-based mobile
telecommunications and technology, and the
components are wide ranging in size and also in the
customers and products of each business
operation.

The decentralised and varied nature of these
operations require significant oversight by iSentric’s
management to monitor the activities, review
component financial reporting and undertake the
Group consolidation.

This was a key audit matter for us given the number
of subsidiaries, varied operations and the
significance of these operations to the group, and
the varied accounting processes and systems used.
We focused on:

e Understanding the components and
identifying significant risks of misstatement
within them;

e The scoping of relevant procedures
consistent with the risks identified and to
enable coverage of significant aggregated
balances;

e The assessment of component compliance
with Group accounting policies, particularly
in regard to revenue recognition and
capitalisation of development costs;

e The consolidation process and the
information provided by components used
for consolidation purposes.

e \We instructed component audit teams to
perform procedures on the financial
information prepared for consolidation
purposes for all components. The objective
of this was to gather evidence on significant
balances that aggregate to form the
Group's financial reporting.

The component audit teams performed
audits of the financial information of the
components and provided an opinion on
component financial statements, which
included notes and compliance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards. We worked with the component
audit team to understand the components,
to identify risks that are significant to the
audit of the Group and to plan relevant
procedures. We discussed the audits as
they progressed to identify any issues,
working with the components, as
appropriate. We evaluated the work
performed by the component audit teams
for sufficiency for our overall audit purpose.
We also considered the component

auditors’ compliance with  Group’s
accounting policies, including revenue
recognition.

e We tested the financial data used, the
consolidation process, for consistency with
the financial data audited by component
audit teams. We also assessed the
consolidation process for compliance with
accounting standards.

Liability limited by the
Accountants Scheme,
approved under the
Professional Standards
Act 1994 (NSW)

MNSA Pty Ltd
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Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The impairment of goodwill is a key audit matter as:

Goodwill represented approximately 29%
of the Group's total assets ;

The market, sector and geographic areas
in which Arte Mobile Pte. Ltd ("CGU”) and
My Play Company Limited ("CGU")
operate are subject to strong competition,
changing regulatory environment and
changes in habits and trends of users
relating to content and product availability;
There is a significant level of judgement
when considering management's
assessment of impairment.

We focused on the valuation methodology and the
key inputs such as forecast cash flows, discount
rates applied, forecast growth rates and risks.

The directors based the impairment
assessment on the CGU’s recoverable
amount, being “fair value less costs of
disposal”.

We assessed managements determination
of the Group's CGU's based on our
understanding of the nature of the CGU’s
business. We also referred to internal
reporting of the Group to assess how
results are monitored and reported.

We compared the forecasts used to

‘determine the recoverable amount to

Board approved forecasts. We also
evaluated the forecasting process
undertaken by the Group assessing the
precision of prior year forecast cash flows
by comparing actual outcomes. We used
knowledge from this evaluation to form our
approach.

We challenged managements forecast
cash flows based on our understanding of
general geographic and market trends,
growth rates and various risks. This
included investigating market growth
through enquiry with management and
external sources.

We agreed that the independent value,
adopted by the Board of Directors, is
reasonable, and that based on the
valuation, the Goodwill is not impaired.
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Other Information

The directors of iSentric Limited are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not include the
financial report and the auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with
Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, the financial statements comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this
financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar2.pdf. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Report on the Remuneration Report
Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included on pages 5 to 7 of the directors’ report for the year ended
30 June 2018.

In our opinion the remuneration report of iSentric Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018, complies with
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities
The directors of iSentric Limited are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration
Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards.

S ?\3\.»&

Name of Firm: MNSA Pty Ltd
Chartered Accountants
Name of Auditor: Mark Schiliro
Address: Level 1, 283 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000
Dated this 30th day of August 2018
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The Board is committed to operating the Company’s business ethicatly and in a manner consistent with high
standards of corporate governance.

In accordance with the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations: 2nd Edition (Revised Principles) (the Principles}, the Corporate Governance Statement must
contain specific information and also report on the Company’s adoption of the Council’s best practice
recommendations on an exception basis, whereby disclosure is required of any recommendations that have
not been adopted by the Company and why. The Company’s corporate governance principles and policies are
therefore structured with reference to the Principles, which are as follows:

1 Lay solid foundations for management and oversight.,
2: Structure the board to add value.

3: Promote ethical and responsible decision making.

4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting.

5: Make timely and balanced disclosure.

6: Respect the rights of shareholders.

7: Recognise and manage risk.

8: Remunerate fairly and responsibly.

A number of the Recommendations under the Principles recommend that certain governance documents
should be made publicly avaitable, ideally by posting such information on the company’s website. All corporate
governance principles and policies, regarding the Company as required by the Principles are set out in this
Corporate Governance Statement.

1

Lay Solid Foundations for Management and Oversight

Board members
During the 2018 financial year:

* Mr Lim Keong Yew, Mr Kwong Yang Chong, Mr Tim Monger and Mr Terry Cuthbertson have
continued as independent Non-Executive Directors.

* Mr Lee Chin Wee has continued as Executive Director.

¢ Mr Raymond Hor became an Executive Director in September 2017,

Roles and responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board has adopted a formal Board charter which outlines the main corporate governance
practices in place for the Company and to which both the Board and each Director are committed. The
conduct of the Board is also governed by the Constitution, and where there is inconsistency with that
document, the Constitution prevails to the extent of the inconsistency.

The Board has an overriding responsibility to act honestly, conscientiously and fairly, in accordance
with the law, in the interests of shareholders (with a view to building sustainable value for them};
employees of the Group; and other people or entities with whom the Group deals.

The Board’s broad function is to chart strategy and set financial targets for the Group; monitor the
fmplementation and execution of strategy and performance against financial targets; and appoint and
oversee the performance of executive management, and generally to take an effective leadership role
in relation to the Group.
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Each Director is aware of both actual and potential conflicts of interest and observes that the law
requires that a Director with a conflict of interest shouid refrain from voting, or entering into any
discussion, at, or even being present during relevant Board discussions. A Director who has any
material personal interest in a matter must not be present at a meeting while the matter is being
considered and must not vote on the matter. A personal interest may be either direct or indirect and
either pecuniary or otherwise. Papers relevant to any matter on which there is a known conflict of
interest, or in relation to which there is a material personal interest, will not be provided to any
Director concerned.

Guide to Reporting on Principle 1

In accordance with the ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 1, the Company provides the following

information:

{a) as at the date of this statement, the Company is of the view that it has complied with
Recommendation 1.1; and

{b] the Company did not undertake a performance evaluation for its executives and Directors during
the financial year in accordance with the process set out in Recommendation 1.2. As a
consequence of the level of the Company’s operations the Company did not undertake a formal
evaluation of the performance of the Board, individual Directors and key executives.

Structure the Board to Add Value

Board composition — independence, experience and expertise

During the 2018 financial year, while the policy of the Company is that the majority of the Board
should be independent Directors, due to the scale of operations and only a six member Board, there
was not at all times a majority of independent bDirectors.

During the 2018 financial year, the independent Non-Executive Chairman, Mr Lim Keong Yew, was
responsible for leadership of the Board and for the efficient organisation and conduct of the Board. He
facilitated the contribution by all Directors and, promoted constructive and respectful relations
hetween Directors.

The current Chairman, Mr Lim Keong Yew, is considered by the Board to be an independent MNon-
Executive Director. From his appointment on 8 September 2014, he has been responsible for those
duties set out above.

The Board has other responsibilities imposed by faw. These include responsibility for the composition
of the Board including appointment and retirement or removal of Directors; oversight of the Group
including control and accountabllity systems; appointing and removing the Chief Executive Officer or
equivalent; where appropriate, ratifying the appointment and the removal of Senior Executives;
reviewing, ratifying and monitoring systems of risk management and internal control, codes of
conduct, and legal compliance; monitoring Senior Executive’s implementation of strategy, and
ensuring appropriate resources are available; approving and monitoring the progress of major capital
expenditure, capital management, and acquisitions and sales; approving and monitoring financial and
other reporting; performance of investment and treasury functions; monitoring industry
developments relevant to the Group and its business; developing suitable key indicators of financial
performance for the Group and its business; having input in and granting final approval of corporate
strategy and performance objectives developed by management; the overall corporate governance of
the Group including its strategic direction and goals for management, and monitoring the
achievement of these goals; and oversight of Committees,

Access to information and independent professional advice
Each Director may seek independent legal or other professional advice at the Company’s expense.
Prior approval from the Chairman is required but may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
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Committees of the Board

The Board has the authority to establish and delegate powers to committees to assist the Board on
audit matters, finance and business risks, remuneration, and nominations, and to establish a
framework for the effective and efficient management of the Company and the Group.

During the 2018 financial year, the Board committees established were that for Audit and
Remuneration and in respect of other committees, the Board as a whole attended to the usual
functions of such commitiees. Given the size and operations of the Company it has been determined
that issues falling ordinarily within the scope of a Nominations Committee are considered by the full
Board and there is no Nominations Committee. The Company has however, established charter rules
for the Nominations Committee as a guide for the Board in its deliberations, and in the event that a
Committee is established at some time in the future if and when considered appropriate by the Board,

Board Assessments
The performance of the Directors was not formally reviewed and assessed by the Board during the
2018 financial year.

Guide to Reporting on Principle 2

in accordance with the ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 2, the Company provides the followmg

information:

{a) The skills, experience, expertise relevant to the position of Director and the term of office held by
each Director as at 30 June 2018 and as at the date of this statement is detailed in the Director’s
Report;

(b} In assessing whether a Director is independent, the Board has regard to the standards it has
adopted that reflect the independence requirements of applicable laws, rules and reguiatlons
including the Principles;

{c}) Four out of six Directors as at the date of this statement constitute independent Directors;

{d) The Company currently has a Group chief executive officer;

{e} From 1 July 2015 to the date of this statement, the role of chair and chief executive officer have
not been exercised by the same person;

{f) Whenever necessary, individual members of the Board may seek independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company in relation to fulfilling their duties as Directors. All Directors are
encouraged to actively participate in all decision making processes and are given every
opportunity to have their opinion heard and respected on all matters;

(g) Due to the small size of the Board and the level of the Company’s operations, during the 2018
financial year the Company did not have a separate nomination committee;

(h} The performance of the Board, individual Directors and the executives has not taken place during
the reporting period due to the level of the Company’s operations;

(i) As at the date of this statement, the Company is of the view that it has complied with
Recommendations 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3, but has not complied with Recommendations 2.4 and 2.5. An
explanation for the departures from these Recommendations is set out above.

Promote Ethical and Responsible Decision-making

Ethical standards and values

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct that provides a framework in which the Company and its
representatives conduct their business and activities in a fiscally efficient and socially responsible
manner whilst seeking to maximize shareholder returns. All Directors and all officers of the Company
and each other company in the Group are expected to act with the utmost integrity and objectivity,
striving at all times to enhance the reputation and performance of the Company and the Group and,
where possible, act in accordance with the interests of shareholders, staff, clients and all other
stakeholders in the Company.
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Share trading policy

The Constitution permits Directors to acquire securities. Company policy prohibits any dealing in, or
procuring the dealing in securities, except where the trading is permitted. Trading is permitted in
securities during a four week period starting immediately after the announcement to the ASX and ASIC
of the half yearly and annual results and after the conclusion of the AGM if:

{a) the trader is not in possession of price sensitive information; and

{b} the trading is not for short term or speculative gain.

No trader can sell more than $100,000 worth of securities to any party unless, before entering into
discussions for the potential sale of those securities, approval from the Chairman is obtained, covering
the form of and timing of the sale, and the management of its public disclosure.

Guide to Reporting on Principle 3

The ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 3’ provides that certain information should be included in the
corporate goverhance section of the Company’s Annual Report or be made publicly available. The
Company will make the Code of Conduct or Trading Policy publicly available at the Company website.

Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting

Audit & Risk Committee

The Company has previously established an Audit & Risk Management (ARM) Committee to assist and

to report to the Board. The role of the ARM Committee was to:

{a} advise on the establishment and maintenance of a framework of internal controls and
appropriate ethical standards for the management of the Group;

{b) assist the Board with policy on the quality and reliability of financial information prepared for use
by the Board; and

{c) review the risk management framework and policies within the Company and monitor their
implementation.

During the 2018 financial year the ARM Committee comprised of three independent Directors, being
Mr Terry Cuthbertson (as Chairman), Mr Lim Keong Yew and Mr Kwong Yang Chong. The Audit
Committee meet twice during the financial year.

Accordingly, it is the Board's responsibility to establish and maintain an effective internal control
framework to examine the effectiveness and efficiency of the management of the Company and
significant business processes such as the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the integrity of financial information, the implementation of quality assurance
practices and procedures and ensuring compliance with environmental regulations.

During this period audit and compliance matters were considered by the Board as appropriate.

Guide to Reporting on Principle 4

The ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 4’ provides that certain information should be included in the
corporate governance section of the Company’s Annual Report. In accordance with the ‘Guide to
Reporting on Principle 4, the Company provides the following information:

{a) The gualifications of the ARM Committee members during the 2018 financial year, were Mr Terry
Cuthbertson (as Chairman) Mr Lim Keong Yew and Mr Kwong Yang Chong are detailed in the
Directors report; and

{b} Two meetings of the ARM Committee took place during the 2018 financial year. During the 2018

financial year, audit and compliance matters were considered during Board meetings as
appropriate.
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Make Timely and Balanced Disclosure

Continuous disclosure

The Company’s continuous disclosure obligations are reviewed as a standing item on the agenda for
each regular meeting of the Board. Directors are required at every meeting to provide details of any
matter within their knowledge that might require disclosure to the market.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for making decisions about whether a matter must be disclosed
under the Company’s continuous disclosure obligations; ensuring that the Company complies with
those obligations; notifying the Board of such matters; monitoring and promoting an understanding
within the Company of compliance; acting as the contact for media and comment, including analyst
briefings and responses to shareholder questions; and keeping the Board informed of other relevant
matters.

Guide to Reporting on Principle 5

The ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 5° provides that certaln information should be included in the
corporate governance section of the Company’s Annual Report or be made publicly available. The
Company notes that it has not made the Code of Conduct publicly available as the Company currently
does not have a website.

Respect the Rights of Shareholders

Communication policy

The Board must inform Shareholders of all major developments affecting the Group’s state of affairs.
The annual report is distributed to all Shareholders (where requested to do so) and will include all
relevant information about the operations of the Group during the year, changes in the state of affairs
of the Group, and detalls of future developments in addition to the other disclosures required by the
Corporations Act.

“Company announcements are made in a factual, timely, clear, and objective manner, and include any
information material to decisions of Shareholders and potential investors in the Company. Informatlon
concerning the Company and the Group, including copies of announcements made through the ASX,
ASIC and the annual report and half yearly report, is made available to Shareholders and prospective
investors by the Company. The Company has a continuing commitment to electronic communication
with Shareholders and stakeholders generally including through the ASX website.

Directors must recognise that their primary responsibility is to Shareholders as a whole however, the
Company must function within, and operate with a sense of responsibility to, the wider community as
well as to Shareholders. It is the Company’s belief that this sense of responsibility to stakeholders
generally is an essential part of its role within the broad community and represents not only sound
ethics but also good business sense and commercial practice.

General Meetings
The Shareholders in General Meeting vote on proposed major changes in the Group which may impact
on share ownership rights and the removal and appointment of Directors,

The Board encourages the full participation of Shareholders at General Meetings to ensure a high level
of accountability and identification with the Group’s strategy and goals. As part of this broad
responsibility the Company welcomes constructive feedback on its contribution to and role within the
community at General Meetings and through the ASX website.
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Guide to Reporting on Principle 6

The ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 6" provides that certain information should be included in the
corporate governance section of the Company’s Annual Report or be made publicly available. The
Company notes that it has not made the Code of Conduct publicly available as the Company currently
does not have a website,

Recognise and Manage Risk

Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee has a documented charter, approved by the board.
The committee advises on the establishment and maintenance of a framework of internal control and
appropriate ethical standards for the management of the group.

The Group chief executive officer and the chief financial officer are invited to Risk and Compliance
Committee meetings and the external auditors are invited to the Audit Committee at the discretion of
the committee.

The responsibilities of the Board, Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee include reporting to the
board on:

*»  reviewing the annual and half-year financial reports and other financial information
distributed externally; this includes approving new accounting policies 1o ensure compliance
with Australian Accounting Standards and generally accepted accounting principles, and
assessing whether the financial information is adequate for shareholder needs;

s assessing management processes supporting external reporting;

. assessing corporate risk assessment processes;

*  establishing procedures for selecting, appointing and, if necessary, removing the external
auditor;

e monitoring the procedures to ensure compliance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ASX
Listing Rules and all other regulatory requirements; and

. addressing any matters outstanding with auditors, Taxation Office, Australian Securities and
Investment Commission, ASX and financial institutions.

The Board Audit reviews the performance of the external auditors on an annual basis and meets with
them during the year fo:

e discuss the external audit plan, identifying any significant changes in structure, operations,
internal controls or accounting policies likely to affect the financial statements, and to review
the fees proposed for the audit work to be performed;

e review the half-year and preliminary final report prior to lodgement with the ASX, and any
significant adjustments required as a result of the auditor’s findings, and to recommend board
approval of these documents prior to announcement of results;

¢ review the results and findings of the auditor, the adequacy of accounting and financial
controls, and monitor the implementation of any recommendations made; and

e as required, organize, review and report on any special reviews or investigations deemed
necessary by the board.

The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee’s charter is available on the Company’s website.

Risk Management

Material business risks arise from such matters as actions by competitors, government policy changes,
the impact of exchange rate movements on the price of raw materials and sales, difficulties in sourcing
raw materials, occupational health and safety, financial reporting and the purchase, development and
use of information systems.
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Qversight of the risk management system

‘The board has in place a number of arrangements and internal controls intended to identify and
manage areas of significant business risk. These include the establishment of committees, regular
budget, financial and management reporting, established organizational structures, procedures,
manuals and policies, external financial audits, insurance programmes and the retention of specialized
staff and externat advisers.

The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee considers risk management in order to ensure risks
are identified, assessed and appropriately managed. The committee reports to the board on these
matters on an ongoing basis. During the year ended 30 June 2018, the committee reviewed the
company’s risk management framework in order to ensure the effective management of the group’s
material business risks.

Risk management and compliance and contro|

The board is responsible for the overall internal control framework, but recognises that no cost-
effective internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities. Comprehensive practices
have been established to ensure:

e capital expenditure and revenue commitments above a certain size obtain prior board
approval;

. financlal exposures are controlled, including the use of derivatives;

+  occupational health and safety standards and management systems are monitored and
reviewed to achieve high standards of performance and compliance with regulations;

. business transactions are properly authorized and executed;

s the guality and integrity of personnel;

e financial reporting accuracy and compliance with the financial reporting regulatory
framework; and

+  environmental regulation campliance.

Code of conduct

The group has advised each director, manager and employee that they must comply with the
company’s code of conduct. The code of conduct is available on the company’s website and covers the
following:

¢ aligning the behavior of the board and management with the code of conduct by maintaining
appropriate core company values and objectives.

s fulfilling responsibilities to shareholders by delivering shareholder value; and

e fulfilling responsibilities to clients, customers and consumers by maintaining high standards of
professionalism, product quality and service.

Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly

Remuneration

During the 2018 financial year, a Remuneration Committee was set up. It comprised of two
independent Directors, being Mr Kwong Yang Chong (as Chairman) and Mr Tim Monger. The Company
has established charter rules for the Remuneration Committee as a guide for the Board In its
deliberations, and in the event that a Committee is established at some time in the future if and when
considered appropriate by the Board.

The Board considers issues relevant to remuneration policies and practices, including those for senior
executives and non-executive Directors. The Board clearly distinguishes the structure of non-executive
directors’ remuneration from that of executive directors and senior executives and in doing so,
reviews and evaluates market practices and trends for all remuneration relevant to the Group.
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Remuneration for the Executive Director and senior executives includes not only monetary payments
(salary and wages} but all other monetary and non-monetary compensation for services and benefits
including fringe benefits; directors’ and officers’ and other insurance arrangements; retirement
benefits; superannuation; and equity participation, and other incentive programs. Non-executive
Directors remuneration is determined in accordance with the aggregate fees determined from time to
time by shareholders.

Guide to Reporting on Principle 8

In accordance with the ‘Guide to Reporting on Principle 8, the Company provides the following

information:

(a) there are no schemes for retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation, in existence
for the Non-Executive Directors; and

(b} as at the date of this statement, the Company is of the view that it has complied with each of the
Recommendations under Principle 8, except for Recommendation 8.1. An explanation for the
departure from Recommendation 8.1 is set out above.
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Distribution of Shareholders Number as at 28 August 2018

Number of ordinary Number of

shares holders

1-1,000 27,410 66
1,001-5,000 456,038 155
5,001-10,000 500,381 66
10,001-100,000 4,484,567 109
100,001 and over 164,161,399 72
169,629,795 468

b. The number of shareheldings held in less than a marketable parcels is 324.

C.

d.

The names of the substantial shareholders listed in the Company’s register as at 28 August 2018 are:

Percentage
Shareholder Number of shares Holding
1. LIM KECNG YEW 28,487,366 15.5%
2. NACHUN WEE 16,528,121 9.0%
20 Largest Shareholders as at 28 August 2018 — Ordinary Shares
Percentage
Shareholder Number of shares Holding
1. BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <UOB KAY HIAN PRIV LTD> 33,651,856 18.3%
2. BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <IB AU NOMS RETAILCLIENT> 22,585,982 12.3%
3. JOX HOLDINGS LIMITED 21,808,380 11.9%
4, CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 16,004,904 8.7%
5. CHUN WEE NA 13,288,121 7.2%
6. BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <UOB KH P/L AC UOB KH> 9,413,391 5.1%
7. HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA} LIMITED 6,941,432 3.8%
8. MR ZAW YE MYINT 5,610,098 3.1%
9. KEONG YEW LIM 5,178,986 2.8%
10. MR KYAW HTOO LINN 4,207,574 2.3%
11. MR MYINT KYAW THU 4,207,574 2.3%
12. LEE CHIN WEE 3,720,884 2.0%
13. N2 GLOBAL [HK) LIMITED 3,240,000 1.8%
14. MR GANESAN SIVANANDAM 1,660,000 0.9%
15.  JEE YEUNG THAM 1,566,667 0.9%
16. MR KEONG YEW LIM 1,500,000 0.8%
17. MR SING CHOU CHEW 1,500,000 0.8%
18. RHB SECURITIES SINGAPORE PTE 1,010,128 0.6%
19. ENG KONG YEOH 1,005,493 0.5%
20. MR MICHAEL STEWART BUNKER 1,000,000 0.5%
159,101,470 B6.6%
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e. Voting Rights

The voting rights attached to each ordinary share is one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each
member present at a meeting or by proxy has one vote on a show of hands.

. The name of the Company Secretary is IMr Gary Stewart. Mr Stewart’s qualifications are:

Bachelors of Laws {LLB}

Mr Stewart has a practice in Corporate Law and advises and works in a number of public listed companies in
Australia. In addition he holds the position of Company Secretary in both public listed companies and
private companies.

. The address of the registered and principle office is:

Level 10, 50 Pitt Street
Sydney NSW 2000

. Registers of securities are held at the following address
Link Market Services

Level 12, 680 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000

. Stock Exchange Listing

Quotation has been granted for all the ordinary shares of the Company on all Member Exchanges of the
Australian Stock Exchange Limited.

. Restricted Securities

Ordinary Shares
Of the 183,655,041 ordinary shares on issue as at 30 June 2018, 169,629,795 ordinary shares are quoted on
the Australian Stock Exchange. 14,025,246 ordinary shares are subject to escrow restrictions.

Options
No options are subject to escrow restrictions.
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